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REPUBLIC OF NAMIBIA

TO THE HONOURABLE SPEAKER OF THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

I have the honour to submit herewith my report on the accounts of the Village Council of Tsandi for
the financial years ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022 in terms of Article 127(2) of the Namibian
Constitution. The report is transmitted to the Honourable Minister of Finance in terms of Section
27(1) of the State Finance Act, 1991, (Act 31 of 1991) to be laid upon the Table of the National

Assembly in terms of Section 27(4) of the Act.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON THE ACCOUNTS OF
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022

1. UNQUALIFIED AUDIT OPINION

I have audited the financial statements of Tsandi Village Council for the financial years ended
30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022. These financial statements comprise the statement of financial
position, statement of Surplus or Deficit, statement of change in net asset/equity, statement of cash
flows and notes to the annual financial statements as Annexure A — B.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position
of the Tsandi Village Council as at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022 and its financial performance
and their receipts and payments and cash flows for the year ended in accordance with International
Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS).

2. BASIS FOR UNQUALIFIED AUDIT OPINION

I conducted the audit in accordance with International Standards for Supreme Audit Institutions. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of the audit report. I am independent of the entity in
accordance with the code of ethics for Supreme Audit Institutions together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. I believe that
the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the audit
opinion.

3. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming the audit opinion thereon,
and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. I do not have anything to report on this
matter.

4. AUDIT OF PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The Council does not have an approved strategic plan in place, hence, no audit was conducted.

5. OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The auditor’s opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, the auditor does not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with the audit of the financial statements, my
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

6. REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

The financial statements for the financial years ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022 were
submitted by the Accounting Officer to the Auditor-General in compliance with Section 85 of the
Local Authorities Act, 1992 (Act No. 23 of 1992), except that they were only submitted on 19
September 2023 as required by the Act.



6.1 Incurred expenditure contrary to the Public Procurement Act

Background

2)

b)

d)

The Tsandi Village Council requested the proposal for the provision of Engineering
Consultancy Services for the provision of Electrical, Water and Sewer reticulation at Tsandi
Extension 6.

On 09 July 2019, Tsandi Village Council awarded a contract with the cost value of
N$ 326 176.80 (VAT inclusive) to a Consulting Engineer.

On 16 July 2019, Tsandi Village Council issued Terms of Reference to a Consulting Engineer
for the provision of Municipal services (Sewer, Water and Electrical Reticulation) design and
supervision of the project at Tsandi Extension 6.

Subsequent to the consultant's appointment, a pivotal project kick-off meeting and consultation
between the client and consultant, resulting in unanimous agreements on various crucial
aspects.

i. Project Scope: The project scope was further refined to encompass both bulk and internal
municipal services, comprising water, sewer, and electricity infrastructure.

ii. Identification of Additional Infrastructure Needs: Through a comprehensive situational
analysis, it was detected that Extension 6, situated on the outskirts of existing developed
areas, necessitated the establishment of a sewer pump station.

iii. Phased Approach: In light of the identified services it was mutually agreed, between the
council and the contractor to divide the scope of work into two (2) distinct phases.

iv. Phased Project Components: Phase 1 was designated to encompass the construction of
water and sewer services, along with electricity infrastructure, while Phase 2 was earmarked
for the construction of the sewer pump station and rising main services.

v. Contractual Arrangements: It was decided to implement the project via three (3) separate
contracts, delineated between Water and Sewer, Electrical works, and Pump Station and
Rising main.

At the end of the contract, the Consulting Engineer was paid a total of N$ 1 491 404.08 (including
VAT) for various invoices which is more than 15% of the initial awarded amount. The total
payment is contrary to Section 62(3) of the Public Procurement Amendment Act, 2022 (Act 3 of
2022) as amended, which states that "the adjustment of the contract price may not exceed 15%,

except for reasons specified in section 36(2)(b) or (c) of the Act, which shows that a direct

procurement is permitted within the prescribed limits, where additional works which were not

included in the initial contract have, though unforeseeable circumstances, become necessary and the
separation of the additional works from the initial contracts would be difficult for technical or
€CoNomic reasons.



7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Section 86 of the Local Authorities Act, 1992 (Act 23 of 1992) and legislation, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are
responsible of overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.

8. AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes the audit opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the International Standards for Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAISs), will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

e As part of an audit in accordance with the International Standards for Supreme Audit
Institutions, I exercise professional scepticism throughout the audit, I also;

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the audit opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies uses and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence, obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention
in the audit report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify the audit opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of the audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.



¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e | communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during the audit.

e [ also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in the audit report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or, when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine
that a matter should not be communicated in the audit report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

9. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The co-operation and assistance by the management and staff of Tsandi Village Council during the

audit is appreciated.
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TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL

ANNEXURE A

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022

ASSETS
Current Assets
Inventories

Account Receivables
Build Together receivables
Unrestricted cash
Restricted cash

VAT Receivable
Prepaymenits

Pledges receivable

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Investments
Total Assets

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Account Payables: Exchange transactions
Account Payables: Non-exchange transactions
Accrued expenses

Employee provisions

Other creditors

Total Liabilities

Net assets and equity
Funds and accounts

Accumulated surplus/deficit
Total net asset and equity

Note

R =2- BN B o We SRV, BV NN

10

11

12
13

29

2022 2021 2020
N$ N$ N$

25817 722 24822358 23077277

11776 063 12114420 | 10815 164

2245 674 1556 295 1 616 803

442 630 471 187 496 376

10 302 871 843 278 893 629

564 067 7057433 | 4605 591

220 075 1615233 | 4379867

36 342 34512 33 198

230 000 230 000 230 000

225723172 226255155 225537270

215337729 | 215696418 | 219693 218

- 173 294 173 294

10 385 443 10 385 443 5 869 102

251540894 | 251077513 | 448627 897

54971 2000 | 22 000

121 460 164 472 102 159

233 401 1305 376 149 614

473 180 540 280 470 653

1119 028 1 809 970 570 195

2 002 040 3822097 | 1314621

279 285 337 800 957 695

249259569 | 246917616 | 246 975 478

249538854 | 247255416 | 247313278




ANNEXURE A

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND
30 JUNE 2022
2022 2021 2020
Note N$ NS N$

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions 8 035 642 8112211 10 009436
Service charges 14 4 246 346 4301153 3448 817 |
Sales of erven 15 575 430 1277 050 2122 891
Rental income 16 226 332 158 436 200 363
Surcharge Income 17 272222 254214 236 998
Fitness certificates 18 55100 40 520 23100
Permission to occupy 19 594 965 471331 438 828
Donations - - - 2375000
Revenue from asset disposal 1507 1 089 583
Other revenue 20 543 340 497 856 270 959
Interest 21 1520 400 1110 564 91 896
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 9226774 8999 395 16 047 638
Property rates and taxes 22 2516 608 | 2246 256 2343 183
Governmental and other departmental transfers 23 6710166 6 753 139 13 474 405
Pledges - - 230 000
Penalty fees - - 50
Total revenue 17 262 415 17 111 606 26 590 239
Less: Expenses 12 926 013 13 758 081 12 026 650
General and Administrative expenses 24 2 636 248 2468 111 2 760 961
Employee costs 25 3553 261 3373259 2963 764
Councillors remuneration 25 191 056 191 056 191 056
Repairs and maintenance 26 362 713 395 796 487 600
Bulk water 27 2089214 2106 092 1693219
Bonus contribution 61777 64 163 -
Depreciation 2 2559514 2 743 302 2258586
Impairment - - 29 344
Regional Council 5% Levy 10 125 830 112313 117 159
Donations 1 000 2103 270 2 000
Increase in leave provision - 82396 -
Employee provisions - 146 541 364 011
Movements in allowance for bad debts 1 345 400 118 322 1158 950
Surplus for the period 4 336 402 3 353 528 15211 987




TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL

ANNEXURE A

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS/EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

AND 30 JUNE 2022

Opening balance as at 01 July 2020
Adjustments to accumulated surplus or deficit
Surplus or deficit for the year

Sub-total

Closing balance as at 30 June 2021

IPSAS ADJUSTMENTS:
Changes in accounting policy

Direct adjustment to equity

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year

Sub-total
Net assets / equity as at 30 June 2022

Note

28/29

Funds and Accumulated  Total net
accounts (surplus)/deficit assets/equity
N$ N§ N$
337 800 246 973 942 247311 742
- (3583 145) (3 583 145)
- 3353 527 3 353 527
- (229 618) (229 618) |
337 800 246 744 324 247 082 124
N§$ N$ N§
- 173 294 173 294
(58 515) (1994 451) (2 052 966)
- 4336 402 4336 402
(58 515) 2 515245 2 456 730
279 285 249 259 569 249 538 854




VILLAGE COUNCIL OF BETHANIE

ANNEXURE A

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Receipts

Sale of good and services
Government grants and subsidies
Interest received

Other receipts

Payments

Employee costs and remuneration
Donations

Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investments

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment

Net cash flow from investing activities

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents:

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

2022 2021

Note N$ N$
16 587973 16 706 538
8367 690 9919 022
6580 166 6 623 139
244 959 164 377
1395158 -
(10205 065) (6 615 082)
’7(3 744 316) | (3 564 314)
(1 000) -
‘ (6459 749) | (3 050 768)
30 6382907 10091 456
(4318187) | (2274712)
-| (4516341)
1507 1089
(4316 680) (6 789 965)
2 066 227 3301 491
8 800 711 5499 220
10 866 939 8 800 711




4 TEI SLT 909 111 LI 8€L 98E LT 8€L 98€ LI
97 686 €ST € S6€ 666 8 086 ZST 2T 086 TSI I
8¢ I11 861 ¥ 61 €5L9 0SZ 156 01 0ST 156 01
%)) (9Zsvv0 1) | 95T 9vT T 0€L 102 1 0€L 10T 1
(ss) (€sv 8.8 T) 112211 8 8SL €€T S 8SL €€TS
(L62) (#9 5 0€8) 79S0T 1 000 082 000 08T
(1) (961 90t) 968 L6V 099 16 099 16
$6 116 81 680 1 000 02 000 02
(9€1) (1€€ 1L2) T€C 1LY 000 002 000 002
(z6) (oLg 61) 0TS OF 0ST 12 0ST 12
z 981 S 1T ¥ST 000 092 000 092
(06) (9¢1 52) 9¢h 851 00¢€ €8 00¢ €8
S 8L1 €9 0S0 LLZ 1 8TT OVE 1 87T OVE 1
(o1) (g€L €9¢ 1) €ST 10€ ¥ 0Th L€6 T 0Th LE6 T
% $N SN $N $N
I5BIUIIIJ UeLILA JWO0IINO [BNJOY 198pngq jaspnq
pajsnipe feury [euidLQ

[®10) puelD)
[#)0})-qug

Igysuen) [eyudswiredop Joyjo pue JUSUIUISAOL)
soxe) pue sajes Anedolg

SUOI)IESUE.I) ISULYIXI-UOU :INUIAIY
[€)03-qng

S]qBAIS021/PIAIAVAI }SAIRIU]

ANUIASI JOYIO

[esodsIp 19sse woj snuaAsy

Adno20 03 uorssiuLIdg

SOJEOIJIIIA0 SSOUYL]

swoour a3 reyoing

SWOdUI [BIUSY

USAID JO S9[eS

Sa3Ieyd 991AIOS

SUONIRSURI) ISUBYIXI :ONUIANY
3101J3p J0 snpdans Jo Juduwd)e)s

1207 AAANT dVIA THL 304 SINQONYV TVALIV ANV LI9dNd A0 NOSTIVJAINOD 40 INTIWALV.LS

4 TINXANNY

(ponuuo)) TTOT ANAL 0€ ANV TZ0T ANAL 0€ CAANT YVAA THL YO SINTWALY.LS TVIONVNIA OL STLON

TIONNOD ADVTTIA IANVSL



01

6 LLILET T SIS €SE € T0L 06 S T0L 06¥ S
(o1 (SP0 798 1) | T80 8SL €I 9€0 968 1T 9€0 968 1T
001 (zze 811 ZzE 811 - -

001 (0L78807) |0LT€01C 000 ST 000 ST
69 $SS 67¢ 196 911 911 9LY 911 9L¥
(zsn) (0€8 5L) 196 9v1 000 0S 000 05
001 (zocevL T | €1€ 2l - -
001 (€91 +9) T0E EPL T - -
(9] (z60 901) 260901 T 000 000 T 000 000 T
99 YTl LSL 96L S6¢ 026 TST 1 026 TS1 1
0 - 960 161 950 161 960 161
91 7L8 199 650 96€ € 1€6 LSOV 1€6 LSO ¥
8¢ ZOL LOS 1 ILESPP T €10 €56 € €10 €56 €
% $N $N $N $N
Quwwﬂmohum QQG&T& > UWIOIINO NPV wmw—:—& ﬁow—uzm_
passnipe [eulq [euIsLQ

yd1yap J0 snjdang

sasuadxa [ejo,

$)qop Peq 0] 9OUBMO[[ Ul JUSWOAOIA
suoneuo(]

uoisiaosd seakodwyg

KAST %G [10UNO)) [eUOI3aY
uonperoaideg

uonNgLIuOd snuog

Iorem yIng

souruLjuUIRW PUE Siredoy
UOIJRJOUNLISI SIO[[IOUNO))

$1500 92Kojdwyg

sosuadxa sAnjRISIUIUIPR pUE [RISUSLD)
sasuadxy

1207 ANNL 0€ FIANT AVIAA THL ¥O4 SINNONYV TVALIV ANV LIDANT 40 NOSIRIVANOD 40 LNANALV.LS

(panuzpuo)) 0T ANAL 0 ANV 120Z ANNC 0€ CAANT YVAA THL ¥OA SINTWALVLS TVIONVYNIA OL STLON

4 RANXHANNY

TIONNOD TOVTIIA IANVSL



I

"MO[9q IN0-13s 3[Npayds uonnqLysip 1o3pnq [epdes ayy Aq pauoddns s1 Jusweless 198pnq fendes oy,

ST 096 €€ 1 | 8IT 98S L 8LOTVI 6 8LO I¥I 6 spuny [#¥)1ded Jo sa0anog :[ejo
001 - - 000 022 000 072 spunj pajeiauss A[[euIayuy
¢l 096 ¥e¢ 1 8IT 98¢ L 000 00§ € 8L01C68 [e1des - pasiugooal siafsuel],
spuny [eynded Jo sadanog
Sl 096 vEET | BITI8S L 8L01768 8L0 1768 amyipuadxs jepdes [ejo],
$30.n0s spunj pue drmupuadxo feypde)
S1 096 ¥EE 1 | 811 98S L 8L0 176 8 8L0 1268 [endeo - pastugooal siogsuel],
Y% N N N N
9, DUBLIBA | SdUBLIEA | 9W0d)NO [EN}OY J5pnq 195pnq
pasnlpe jeury [ewI3LIO

1202 ANAL 0€ AAANT dVIA THL 404 SINAONY TVALIV ANV LIDANG 'TVLIAVD 40 NOSIRIVJINOD 40 INAWIALV.LS

(ponutuoD) TT0T ANAL 0€ ANV 1207 ANNL 0€ AAANT SUVAA THL O4 SINIWALV.LS TVIONVNIA OL STLON

TIDNNOD ADVTTIA IANVSL
4 TANXANNY



ANNEXURE B
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

CAPITAL BUDGET DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021
NS$
Capital budget 13 483 747
NPC funding 3000000 |
Construction of services 600 000
Oxidation pond fencing 700 000
Streets, sidewalks, graveling and Storm water 739 100
Construction of waste water treatment plant (Phase 1) 5267414
Alignment of the planned Ongulumbashe road 150 000
Town planning fees (Committed for Winplan) 600 000
Land scaping and construction of Open Market 600 000
Land Surveying and beacon relocation (Phase 1) 1 000 000
Construction of Build Together houses 527233
Rehabilitation of old dumping site 200 000
Construction of dry pit toilets 100 000 |
Retention fees 484 221
Faradays Electrical Engineers 484 221
Total capital outlay budget 13 967 968
BUDGETED AMOUNTS NOT SPENT 71 400
Standby Credit Allowance 2 400
Severance Fund 59 000
HIV/AIDS and Wellness Programme 10 000

12
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ANNEXURE B
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE
2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

CAPITAL BUDGET DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022
N§
Capital budget 10 312 268
Construction of waste water treatment plant (phase 1) 5267414
Construction of services (water reticulation) (ext. 6 phase 1) 128 521
Construction of services design and documentation (ext. 10 & 11) 600 000
Construction of services (oxidation pond fencing) 700 000
Alignment of the planned Ongulumbashe road 150 000
Town planning fees (committed for Winplan) 600 000
Land scaping and construction of open market 600 000
Land surveying and beacon relocation (phase 1) 1 000 000
Construction of Build Together houses 527233
Streets, sidewalks, graveling and storm water 739 100

Capital budget statement holds a commitment of N$ 10 312 268 for various capital projects. These projects
straddle from one financial year to another depending on the Village Council’s access to funds. Access to funds is
not direct as the projects are not self-funded, and the Village Council does not control access to capital project
funds which are allocated by the line Ministry at their discretion.

The projects shall continue into the future with an anticipation that, they will be undertaken with a period of

5 years depending on the line Ministry’s budget allocation which is not within the Village Council’s control.

Retention fees 484 221
Faradays Electrical Engineers | 484221 |

Retention fee forms part of the cost of capital assets and follows the progress relating to specific projects to which
it relates.

BUDGETED AMOUNTS NOT SPEND 113 400
Standby credit allowance 2 400
Severance fund 59 000
HIV/AIDS and wellness programme 10 000
Road sign boards 42 000
UNEARNED BUDGETED REVENUE . 401 250
Income from penalties 1050 |
VAT refunds ‘ 400 000

Pegs searching 200
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ANNEXURE B

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

The Village Council budgeted expenses amounting to N$ 71 400 and N$ 113 400 for financial years ended
June 2021 and June 2022 respectively which were not incurred during the financial year. The biggest
amount not spent relates to severance fund and road signs which were not purchased after the Village
Council reconsidered delaying the expenditure as there would be no immediate effect on the sewer
reticulation that could translate to reduced service delivery. The Village Council intends to refine its budget
forecasts in line with the IPSAS framework. All the amounts not spent did not result in reduced service
delivery to the community in which the Village Council serves.

COMMENTS ON VARIANCES BETWEEN BUDGETED AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges
The increase in revenue collection by 41% is due to an increase in the rate of consumption of water which

was more than what was anticipated.

Property sales
As per customer signed contracts, payments on property sales for the year were lower than anticipated.

Fitness certificate
There were new businesses opened resulting in an anticipated increase in revenue from fitness certificates.

Rental income
The demand for equipment and portable toilets was higher than budgeted.

Permission to occupy
There were new applicants for occupation of land than anticipated

Asset disposal
There were less disposals to items of property, plant and equipment due lesser breakdowns.

Other revenue
The increase was due to other income items which were not budgeted for but became sources of service

potential. The other major contributor to the variance is building sands sales which was higher than
anticipated.

Interest
Interest from accounts receivables was under budgeted.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Government transfers
Less allocations were received from the line Ministry than budgeted.

Property rates and taxes
Revenue from rates and taxes was higher than anticipated due to new locations having been serviced and

purchasers making payments in full.
General expenses and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses for the year were over budgeted despite adjustments made from prior

year to lower the budget amount.

17



ANNEXURE B
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

COMMENTS ON VARIANCES BETWEEN BUDGETED AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Employee costs
The variance which is 12% lower than budget is due to employee formal job terminations.

Repairs and maintenance
The variance of 80% is due to less breakdown of infrastructure assets that support service delivery.

Depreciation
The item was not budgeted for.

Regional Council levy
The variance is due to understatement of the anticipated revenue from property rates to be collected.

Donations
The variance is due to less donations being made during the year.

Bonus provision
The variance is due to bonus provision not having been budgeted for.

Movement in doubtful accounts
No provision for an allowance for doubtful accounts was made.

Capital budget

Capital budget statement variance reported are due to projects which are still underway and straddle to
other financial years
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ANNEXURE B
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE
2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1. Overview

The financial statements for Tsandi Village Council have been prepared in accordance with accrual basis
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). As a Public Interest Entity (PIE), Tsandi
Village Council's primary objective is to deliver services to the community in which it was established.
Public Interest Entities (PIEs) that operate under the Local Authorities Act do not hold equity and do not
operate for a financial return.

Effective July 1, 2018, Tsandi Village Council adopted IPSAS as its financial reporting framework. As a
first-time adopter, Tsandi Village Council opted for exemptions in IPSAS 33, First time adoption of accrual
basis International Public Sector Accounting Standards, exemptions that affect fair presentation and
compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. With this option, Tsandi Village Council did not make an explicit
and unreserved statement of compliance with accrual basis IPSAS. As of 01 July 2021, the exemptions that
provided Tsandi village council with relief expired.

As at the expiry of the transitional exemptions, Tsandi Village Council has fully recognized, measured,
presented and/or disclosed all relevant financial statements items in accordance with applicable IPSAS. All
relevant accounting policies used to report financial information have been incorporated in these financial
statements. Any changes to accounting policies used to report financial information in the current financial
year have been retrospectively applied to the prior financial year.

1.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost and accrual accounting, unless
otherwise specified (for example in the case of the statement of cash flows).

1.3 Infiationary adjustments

No adjustments have been made for the effects of inflation on the financial position or results of operations
of the local authority.

1.4 Reporting currency
The items included in the financial statements of Tsandi Village Council are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates, also known as the functional currency.

The functional and presentation currency of Tsandi Village Council is the Namibia dollar. This ensures
consistency and comparability in the financial statements.

1.5 Reporting period

The reporting period for these financial statements is for the years ended June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022, with
the financial years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021, as the comparative.
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TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE
2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1.6 Cost convention

Tsandi Village Council's financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. No
adjustment has been made for the effects of inflation on the financial position or results of operations of the
local authority.

1.7 Presentation currency and rounding

The financial statements are presented in Namibia dollar which is the Village Council’s presentation and
functional currency, and all values, including Councilors’ remuneration disclosures in note 25 are rounded
off to the nearest dollar.

1.8 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accrual basis IPSAS requires Tsandi Village
Council management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Given that
uncertainty is inherent in the use of estimates and assumptions, actual results may differ significantly from
management estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period affected. Examples
of estimates include useful lives of tangible and intangible assets, inventory valuation; collectability of
receivables, provisions and adjustments of advances of cash assistance, and contingencies.

Information on critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements and which could have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment shall include the following, but not limited to:

Contingencies: legal proceedings covering a wide range of matters which are or may be pending or
threatened against Tsandi Village Council.

Provisions: are recorded for pending matters when it is determined that an unfavorable outcome is probable
and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Owing to the inherently uncertain nature of the
matters, the ultimate outcome or actual cost of settlement may materially vary from estimates.
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TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE
2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.9 Change in accounting policy

IPSAS 3, allows a change in accounting policy where such a change:

« Is required by an IPSAS; and

« Results in the financial statements providing faithfully representative and more relevant information
about effects of transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows.

Where there has been a change in accounting policy, Tsandi Village Council shall apply such changes
retrospectively as if the accounting policy had always been applied for the comparative period unless
impracticable.

Where there is a change in an accounting estimate, Tsandi Village Council shall apply such changes
prospectively by including changes in surplus or deficit:

« The period of the change if the changes affect the period only; or

« The period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both.

Correction of material errors in the preparation of financial statements of one or more periods are corrected
retrospectively by restating comparative period amounts.

Where IPSAS does not provide guidance as to whether a change is a change in accounting policy or a
change in accounting estimate, the change shall be considered to be a change in accounting estimate.

The following are not changes in accounting policy:
a) The application of an accounting policy for transactions, other events or conditions that differ in

substance from those previously occurring.

b) The application of a new accounting policy for transactions, other events or conditions that did not
occur previously or that were immaterial.

c) Improvements in the existing accounting policy to ensure a true and fair view of the financial statements
of Tsandi Village Council.

1.10 Significant changes

1.10.1 New developments and interpretations in financial reporting

There have been significant changes to the reporting of intangible assets following a request to address how
a customer should account for costs (as capital or revenue expenditure) in software as a service
arrangement (SaaS). Tsandi Village Council is in an arrangement with the provider of the accounting
system and the costs associated with the initial installation and set-up of the accounting software were
accounted for as capital expenditure as at the adoption of IPSAS in the year commencing 01 July 2019.

Due to different practices of accounting for costs, The International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) was consulted on the matter of diverse practices of accounting for the costs of SaaS
products. IFRIC issued a pronouncement on the matter resulting in Tsandi Village Council taking an
appropriate decision to derecognize the accounting software from intangible assets category. The
recognition as a result of the agenda decision has been applied as a change in accounting policy.
Furthermore, the Village Council has taken a decision to retire IPSAS 31, Intangible assets up to a time
when relevant transactions occur. Significant changes applied to these financial statements as set out above
were mandated by provisions of IPSAS 3, accounting policies changes in accounting estimates and errors,
paragraph 26.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.10.2 Full IPSAS implementation

Changes coming in the form of full application of all IPSASs relevant to transactions and events arising in
the ordinary course of operations at Tsandi Village Council have taken 3 years which began with the
transitional period.

For the transitional period, IPSAS 33, First time adoption of accrual basis International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) was applicable. Provisions of IPSAS 33, First time adoption of accrual
basis IPSAS outlining requirements for exemptions that affect fair presentation are no longer applicable to
transactions and events beginning 01 July 2021. Further enhancements come through the inclusion of the
recommended practice guidance 2, whose objective is to assist users of Tsandi Village Council General
purpose financial reports understand the financial position, financial performance and cash flow thorough a
financial statements’ discussion and analysis commentary.

2. Standards issued and effective

The International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) has issued International Public
Sector Accounting Standard: -

IPSAS 44: Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations.
IPSAS 44: Specifies the accounting for assets held for sale and the presentation and disclosure of
discontinued operations.

It requires assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and depreciation on such assets to cease and be presented
separately in the statement of financial position, and the results of discontinued operations to be presented
separately in the statement of financial performance.

2.1 Revised standards

IPSAS 22: Disclosure of Financial Information about the general government sector

IPSAS 39: Employee benefits

IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and measurements (as applicable prior to the adoption of
IPSAS 41)

2.3 Standards issued and not yet effective

Following the release of the final pronouncement, Covid-19: Deferral of Effective Dates, which delays the
effective dates of recently published standards and Amendments to IPSAS by one year to January 1, 2023,
stakeholders have been provided with additional implementation time.

The following standards were issued but not effective;

a) [IPSAS 41: Financial instruments; and

b) IPSAS 42: Social benefits.

While amendments to the IPSASs below were also deferred to January 1, 2023;

a) Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures (Amendments to IPSAS 36)
b) Prepayment features with negative compensation (Amendments to IPSAS 41)
c) Collective and individual services (Amendments to IPSAS 19); and

d) Improvements to IPSAS, 2019
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.3 TPSASs not adopted by Tsandi Village Council

International Public Sector Accounting Standards listed below have not yet been adopted for the purposes
of reporting financial information for the year ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 (comparative).
Management shall apply any of the [IPSAS where the Village Council’s future transactions render it
necessary to apply the provisions of the respective IPSAS;

IPSAS 4: The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

IPSAS 5: Borrowing costs

IPSAS 10: Financial reporting in hyperinflationary times

IPSAS 11: Construction contracts

IPSAS 16: Investment property

IPSAS 26: Impairment of cash-generating assets

IPSAS 31: Intangibles

IPSAS 34: Separate financial statements

IPSAS 35: Consolidated financial statements

IPSAS 36: Investment in associates and joint ventures

IPSAS 37: Joint arrangements

IPSAS 38: Disclosure of interest in other entities

IPSAS 40: Public sector combinations

3. Tsandi Village Council accounting policies

A summary of significant accounting policies which have been applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements are disclosed below.

3.1 IPSAS 1: Presentation of financial statements

This standard prescribes the manner in which general-purpose financial statements of the Village Council

should be presented to ensure comparability with previous financial periods and sets out guidance for the

structure of and minimum requirements for financial statements prepared under the accrual basis of

accounting. The Village Council’s annual financial statements, prepared in accordance with IPSAS include:

« Statement of financial position;

« Statement of financial performance;

« Statement of changes in net assets;

» Statement of cash flows;

« A statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts, on the basis of the budget; and

« Notes to the financial statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

3.1.1 Village Council disclosures
Disclosures follow the prescribed IPSAS 1, presentation of financial statements model. Additional line

items, sub-headings are added where necessary. Other disclosures required should include the judgments
that management made in the process of applying accounting policies.

23



ANNEXURE B

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE
2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.2 TPSAS 2: Statement of cash flows

The Standard requires the provision of information about the historical changes in cash and cash equivalents
of an entity by means of a cash flow statement that classifies cash flows during the period from operating,
investing, and financing activities.

3.2.1 Village Council disclosures

The statement of cash flow shall report cash flows from three categories namely;

« Operating activities,

« Investing activities; and

« Financing activities.

The statement of cash flow shall be prepared using the direct method. The net surplus or deficit of the
Village Council shall be adjusted for the effects of non-cash transactions in a reconciliation forming part of
explanatory notes to the financial statements.

3.3 IPSAS 14: Events after the reporting date

This standard outline when the Village Council should adjust its financial statements for events that occur
after the reporting date and the disclosures that the Village Council should make about the date when the
financial statements were authorized for issue and about events that occur after the reporting period. The
standard also states that the Village Council should not prepare its financial statements on a going concern
basis if events after the reporting period indicate that the going concern assumption is not appropriate. This
means that if those responsible for preparing the financial statements or the governing body determine after
the reporting date that there is no realistic alternative but to do so, financial statements should not be
prepared on a going concern basis.

3.3.1 Village Council disclosures

The Village Council must disclose the following for each material category of non-adjusting event after the
reporting date:

(a) The nature of the event, and

(b) An estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made.

Other disclosures should include the date when financial statements were authorized for issue, and the
name and identity of the person giving that authorization. The Auditor General has the power to direct the
amendment of financial statements in terms of statutory audits.

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement

Between the reporting date and the date of authorization for issue, pronouncements from local government
may affect how Tsandi Village Council reports events and transactions in its general-purpose financial
reports. Whether or not these pronouncements should be recognized as adjusting events would depend on
whether they provide more information about the conditions existing at the reporting date and whether
there is sufficient evidence that they can and will be fulfilled. In most cases, the announcement of central
government intentions will not lead to the recognition of adjusting events, instead they would generally
qualify for disclosure as non-adjusting events.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.4 IPSAS 20: Related party disclosures

The objective of this standard is to set the disclosure requirements for transactions between the Village
Council and its related parties in certain circumstances. The relationships between related parties should be
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Transactions that occur within a normal supplier-recipient
relationship and on arm's-length terms should also be disclosed.

3.4.1 Village Council disclosures

The Village Council must disclose related party transactions and management remuneration, including an
analysis of the different types of remuneration. With respect to related parties, the Village Council should
disclose the nature of the related party relationship and the types of transactions that have occurred.

3.5 IPSAS 21: Impairment of non-cash generating assets.

This standard outlines the procedures that the Village Council applies to determine whether a non-cash
generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are recognized. It also specifies when an
impairment loss can be reversed and prescribes disclosures.

3.5.1 Village Council disclosures
The Village Council must disclose the amount of impairment loss recognized in surplus or deficit during
the period and the amount of reversal of impairment loss recognized in surplus or deficit.

3.5.2 Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset must be reduced to its recoverable service amount and that reduction is an impairment loss.

The standard requires the Village Council to make a formal estimate of the recoverable service amount
only if there is an indication of a potential impairment loss. An impairment loss must be recognized
immediately in surplus or deficit. When the estimated impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount
of the asset, the carrying amount of the asset must be reduced to zero with a corresponding amount
recognized in surplus or deficit. A liability may be recognized only if another IPSAS requires it. After
recognizing an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortization) charge for the asset must be adjusted in
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any) on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

3.6 IPSAS 24, Presentation of budget information in financial statements

This standard requires that a comparison of budget amounts and actual amounts arising from the execution
of the budget be included in the financial statements of the Village Council. This is because the Village
Council is required to make its approved budget publicly available and is held accountable for it.

3.6.1 Village Council disclosures

The Village Council shall disclose a reconciliation between actual amounts on a comparable basis in the
Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. The Village Council shall disclose the budgetary
basis and classification basis adopted in the approved budget and the financial period of the approved
budget. Explanations of variances between the final budget and actual amounts as presented in the
comparison shall be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.7 IPSAS 9: Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by the
Village Council, which represents an increase in net assets other than increases relating to contributions
from owners. An exchange transaction is one in which the Village Council receives assets or services or
has liabilities extinguished and directly gives approximately equal value to the other part in exchange. Fair
value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

3.7.1 Recognition

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, the Village

Council shall recognize revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting

date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

« The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow
to the entity;

« The stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

« The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be estimated reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other
method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any
other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until after the execution of that significant act. When the
outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only
recognized to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable. Service revenue is recognized by
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is
determined by surveys of work performed.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all of the conditions are satisfied:

« The Village Council has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the
purchaser;

» The Village Council retains neither continued managerial involvement to the degree normally associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

« The amount of revenue can be measured refiably;

« It is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Village Council; and

« The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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3.7.2 Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and
volume rebates. Service charges such as solid waste, sanitation, sewerage and water are based on approved
tariffs and consumption. Revenue is recognized in the period when the service is provided or consumed.
Provisional estimates may be used when meter readings are not performed but these estimates are adjusted
in the invoicing period when meters have been read. In the case of prepayment, services are recognized at
point of sale and any unutilized portion is adjusted at the end of the year based on average consumption
history.

Revenue from sale of land

Revenue from sale of land shall be recognized when and only when, the following conditions are met:

« The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« It is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Village Council;

« Ministerial approval is granted to the purchaser to purchase a serviced plot;

« Council approval to purchase a plot is granted by the Council; and;

« The purchaser pays the full amount of the purchase price inclusive of conveyancer, and administration
fees.

Conveyancer fees shall not be accounted for as revenue. Upon receipt, the Village Council remits
conveyancer fees to a conveyancer for the purposes of transferring title to the purchaser by way of a deed
of title. Where conveyancer fee is held by the Village Council, it shall be accounted for as a liability in the
statement of financial position.

Upon the revenue criteria set out above being met, Tsandi Village Council shall derecognize all purchased
plots from inventory of serviced plots every financial year. Tsandi Village Council shall levy rates and
taxes on derecognized plots in line with the requirements and provisions of the Local Authorities Act,
Section 73.

3.8 IPSAS 23: Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by the
Village Council, which represents an increase in net assets/equity, other than increases relating to
contributions from owners. Amounts collected by the Village Council as an agent of the government or other
third parties do not meet the definition of revenue. Control of an asset arises when the Village Council can
use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude or regulate the access of
others to that benefit.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions where the Village Council receives resources and provides no or
nominal consideration directly in return. In a non-exchange transaction, the Village Council receives value
from another party without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange.

Where the Village Council provides some consideration directly in return for the resources received but that
consideration does not directly approximate the fair value of resources received, the village council
determines whether there is a combination of exchange and non-exchange transactions each component of
which is recognized separately.
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There are additional transactions where it is not immediately clear whether they are exchange or non-
exchange transactions. In determining whether the substance of a transaction is that of a2 non-exchange or
an exchange transaction, professional judgment is exercised.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic
benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Assets may be transferred with an expectation and/or understanding that they will be used in a particular
way and therefore, that the Village Council will act in a particular way. Where laws, regulations or binding
arrangements with external parties impose terms on the use of transferred assets by the Village Council,
these terms are stipulations.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purpose for which a transferred asset
may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned
to the transferor if not deployed as specified. Conditions on transferred assets require that the Village
Council either consume future economic benefits or service potential of the assets as specified or return
future economic benefits or service potential to the transferor in the event that the conditions are breached.
Therefore, the Village Council incurs a present obligation to transfer future economic benefits or service
potential to third parties when it initially gains control of an asset subject to a condition.

If past experience with the transferor indicates that the transferor never enforces the requirement to return
the transferred asset or other future economic benefits or service potential when breaches have occurred,
then the Village Council concludes that the stipulation has the form but not the substance of a condition and
is therefore a restriction.

Taxes such as property rates (assessment rates) are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily
paid to the Village Council in accordance with laws and/or regulations. Taxes do not include fines or
penalties imposed as a result of breaches of the law. Transfers are future economic benefits or service
potential from non-exchange transactions other than taxes.

Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognized as an asset shall be recognized as
revenue except to the extent that a liability is also recognized in respect of the same inflow.

As the Village Council satisfies a present obligation recognized as a liability in respect of an inflow of
resources from a non-exchange transaction recognized as an asset, it shall reduce the carrying amount of
the liability recognized and recognized an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

The Village Council recognizes revenue from conditional grants and donations to the extent that the Village
Council fulfills the terms and conditions stipulated in the agreement. If the terms and conditions have not
been met, a liability shall be recognized.

The Village Council recognizes revenue in relation to debt forgiveness when the debt in question no longer
meets the criteria for classification as a liability Bequests that meet the definition of an asset shall be
recognized as assets and revenue when it is likely that future economic benefits or service potential will
accrue to the Village Council, and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
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Gifts and donations including goods in kind that meet the definition of an asset shall be recognized as
assets and revenue when it is likely that future economic benefits or service potential will accrue to the
Village Council and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by the Village Council from an
individual or from another entity as determined by a court in Namibia or other law enforcement body as a
consequence of the individual or other entity breaching the requirements of laws or regulations. Assets
resulting from fines shall be measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the Village Council.

The Village Council recognizes revenue from fees and fines when the event occurs and the asset
recognition criteria is met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a
liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange
revenue is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the asset will flow to the Village Council and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Measurement

Revenue from non-exchange transactions shall be measured at the amount of an increase in net assets
recognized by the Village Council. When as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the Village Council
recognizes an asset, the Village Council also recognizes revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset
unless the village council is required to recognize a liability. When the liability is subsequently reduced
because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability will
be recognized as revenue.

3.9 IPSAS 17: Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others or for administrative purposes and
expected to be used for more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall comprise:

¢ The purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade
discounts and rebates.

¢ Any cost that is directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

o The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in an exchange transaction, its cost is the fair
value at the date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for non-monetary asset(s) or
monetary asset(s) or a combination of monetary and non-monetary asset(s), the asset acquired is initially
measured at fair value. If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the
carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. With respect to land, if the land was acquired in a non-exchange
transaction and the price is not determinable, it’s deemed cost on initial recognition is the gazetted price.

Property, plant, and equipment are recognized as assets when it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential will flow to the Village Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant components of an item of property, plant, and equipment have different useful lives, they

are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant, and equipment.
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The cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment includes costs incurred initially to acquire or
construct an item of property, plant, and equipment and costs subsequently incurred to add to, and/or to
replace part of the item of property, plant, and equipment. If a replacement cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant, and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced item of property,
plant, and equipment is derecognized.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site in which it is
located is also included in the cost of property, plant, and equipment where the Village Council has an
obligation to incur such an expenditure and the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it
for the purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant, and equipment ceases when the
item is in the location, and condition, necessary for it to be operated in the manner intended by
management. Major spare parts and standby equipment which are expected to be used for more than one
period are included in property, plant, and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant, and equipment
and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of item of property,
plant, and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognized.

Property, plant, and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
except for land which is not depreciated. Property, plant, and equipment items are depreciated using the
straight-line depreciation method over the item’s useful life.

Each part of any item property, plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item is depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period is recognized in the statement of
surplus or deficit unless if it is included in the cost of another asset.

Items of property, plant, and equipment shall not have any residual value as they shall be fully employed in
the provision of goods and/or services. For plant and equipment, useful lives and depreciation method shall
be reviewed annually and changes shall be recognized prospectively as a change in accounting estimate in
the statements of surplus or deficit. Minor assets below N$ 1 000 are not depreciated. They are expensed in
the year of acquisition.

Assets that are fully depreciated and are no longer used in the production of goods and/or services are held
at a dollar value in the asset register for the purposes of completeness and monitoring pending disposal. Items
of property, plant, and equipment are derecognized when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of Property, Plant, and equipment are recognized in
the statement of surplus or deficit as other income. The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item
of property, plant, and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds (if any)
and the carrying amount of the item.

Land

Unserviced land is accounted for using IPSAS 17, property, plant, and equipment. Land held for future
servicing and allocation to purchasers in an exchange or non-exchange transaction for the purposes of
residential, business, institutional, agricultural, private open space, industrial (both light and heavy), or
other uses authorized by Tsandi Village Council is accounted for as property, plant and equipment. Such
land does not qualify as investment property in line with IPSAS 16, Investment property, paragraph 14.
Tsandi Village Council uses a service delivery model and holds such land for service delivery objectives.
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Serviced land allocated to public open space(s), the construction of roads network (including streets), water
reticulation, sewer reticulation, electrical reticulation and other uses spanning more than one operational
cycle is accounted for as property, plant, and equipment.

Where serviced land is held for the purposes of reselling for example residential erven, business erven,
institutional, and/or industrial (both light and heavy), such land is accounted for as property, plant and
equipment to the extent that such serviced land is not disposable within twelve (12) months from the
reporting date.

All serviced land held for sale within 12 months from the reporting date is accounted for under IPSAS 12,
Inventories or other relevant IPSAS.

Unserviced and serviced land shall be measured at the gazetted price as at the adoption and implementation
of IPSAS or any other approved valuation method by the Village Council. All items qualifying as property,
plant and equipment are recorded in a register of assets where depreciation is calculated on an annual basis
or for a proportionate period falling within a specific financial year as provided for in the depreciation
policy below.

Depreciation policy

On the register of assets, Tsandi Village Council classifies items of property, plant and, equipment under:
e Land

¢ Buildings

e Plant, equipment and machinery

e Computers and office equipment

¢ Furniture, fixtures, and fittings

For each and every item of property, plant, and equipment belonging to classes set out above, Tsandi
Village Council allocates a depreciable amount of each and every item over its useful life.

No residual value is allocated to items of property, plant and equipment as they are used in the production
of goods and services until their service potential becomes insignificant in value

The useful lives of items of property. Plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

|| Type of asset Depreciation method | (Average) Useful life
Buildings Straight line (10-50)
Furniture and Fittings Straight line (5-15)
Computer & Office Equipment [Straight line (3-10)
Plant and Machinery Straight line (5-25)
Motor Vehicles Straight line (5-15)
Infrastructure Straight line (10-50)

Depreciation charge for the year is recognized in surplus or deficit unless it includes the carrying amount of
another asset. Tsandi Village Council depreciates items of property, plant, and equipment when they are
available for use i.e., when the item of property, plant and equipment is deployed for uses intended by
management.

There shall be a contra account for an item of property, plant and equipment for the purposes of
accumulation of depreciation over an item’s useful life.

31



ANNEXURE B
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE
2021 AND 30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

Future service potential of an item of property, plant and equipment is consumed through use of an item. If
an item of property, plant and equipment lies idle through disuse, Tsandi Village Council calculates
depreciation for two (2) years from the end of the reporting date in which the item became idle through
disuse after which depreciation shall cease and the asset is assessed for impairment.

An item of property, plant, and equipment which suffers technical obsolescence is assessed using the
factors for idle items of property, plant and equipment above.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item shall be depreciated separately. The remainder of the item is depreciated separately
whether they are significant or insignificant. The Village Council attaches useful life to items of property,
plant and equipment using management judgment based on:

¢ The expected usage of the item;

» Expected physical wear and tear which is dependent on operational factors;

e Legal or other similar rights on the usage of the item; and

e Any other factors which may have a bearing on the item’s condition, existence, and exposure.

The useful life of items of property, plant and equipment shall approximate the item’s economic life. An
assessment of useful life is performed at the end of every financial year. Items of property, plant and
equipment with an embodiment of future economic benefits or service potential in excess of the remaining
useful life where useful life is equal to or less than two (2) financial years are considered for a new useful
life. New useful life is based on management judgment based on experience of the Village Council with
similar assets. Land is not depreciated unless the cost of the land includes the cost of dismantlement and
restoration of the sight. The Village Council shall apply the straight-line method to all its items of property,
plant and equipment. Any change in the depreciation model is accounted for as a change in accounting
policy in line with a relevant IPSAS.

3.10 IPSAS 12: Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except when they are acquired through a non-exchange
transaction in which case they are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition. As at the date of
acquisition, the fair is used to measure the cost of inventories.

Subsequently, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

The cost of inventories includes all costs of purchase, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of inventories shall be determined using the
first-in first-out (FIFO) method. The same method is used for all inventories of a similar nature and use to
the Village Council.

When inventories are sold or used, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognized as expenses in
the period in which the related revenue is recognized. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are
recognized when the goods are distributed or services are rendered.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses on inventories are
recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories arising from an increase in net realizable value are recognized as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Serviced erven

Serviced erven qualifying under this standard is accounted for as inventory of serviced plots. When plots
are serviced, such plots are recognized under this standard to the extent that the plots were not disposed as
at the reporting date after having been available for sale from the date when servicing was confirmed to be
complete by management. In the absence of cost and net realizable value as required under IPSAS 12,
Inventories serviced plots shall be measured at the lowest gazetted price for that specific financial year
irrespective of the location, area, or zoning. Work in progress shall not be accounted for under IPSAS 12:
Inventories.

3.11 YPSAS 19: Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when;

« The Village Council has a present obligation as a result of past events;

« It is likely that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required
to settle the obligation; and

« A reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

The amount of the provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a
provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. Where
some or all of the expenditure required to settle the provision is reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received and is
treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of
the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are reversed if it is no longer likely that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are used only for the expenditures for which
the provision was initially recognized and are not recognized for future operating deficits. If the Village
Council has an onerous contract, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognized
and measured as a provision.

3.12 TPSAS 39: Employee benefits
Employee benefits refer to all forms of compensation given by Tsandi Village Council in exchange for
services rendered by employees. The four categories of employee benefits are:

3.12.1 Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be
settled within twelve (12) months from the end of the year in which the employee rendered the services.
Examples within Tsandi Village Council include:

+«Wages and salaries;

oFixed and variable allowances;

«Social security contribution;

«Short term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave); and

«Variable short-term remuneration.

When an employee has rendered services to the Village Council during a reporting period, the Village

Council recognizes an undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid for that

service as:

« A liability net of any payments already made. If any payment made already exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, the Village Council recognizes the excess as an asset.

« An expense unless another standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of another

asset.
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The costs of these employee benefits are recognized in the statement of surplus or deficit when the service
is rendered or the rights to benefits are accrued. The expected cost of compensated absences is recognized
as an expense as the employee render services that increase their entitlement or in the case on non-
accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The Village Council measures the expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the Village Council expects to pay as a
result of unused entitlement that has accumulated as at the reporting date.

3.12.2 Post-employment benefits

These are employee benefits that become payable after the completion of employment. Examples include
pensions and job-related early retirements. Tsandi Village Council's pension plan is administered by the
Retirement Fund for Local Authorities and Utilities Services in Namibia (RFLAUN). Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which a municipality pays fixed contributions into a
separate Local Authorities Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the Village Council during a reporting period, the Village

Council recognizes the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:

« As a liability after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for service before the reporting date, the Village Council recognizes that excess as an
asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payments or a cash refund; and

« As an expense unless another standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of
an asset.

3.12.3 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

« The Village Council decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date;
or

« An employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

The costs are recognized in full in the statement of surplus or deficit as soon as a decision is made.
Termination benefits are recognized at the present value of the obligation.

3.13 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of the Village Council and a
financial liability or a residual interest of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Village Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transactions costs except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at
fair value.

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by the Village Council on terms that are not market
related.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. A financial asset is:

« Cash;

« An equity instrument of another entity; or
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« A contractual right to:
-Receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
-Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially favorable to the Village Council.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the Village Council for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

Deliver cash;

A financial asset to another entity; or

Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the
Village Council.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by the Village Council in the event of difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. Loans
payable are financial liabilities other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the
Village Council had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.

Classification and initial measurement

Financial instruments at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial
liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments. Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the
assets meet the following conditions:

« They are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its
contractual cash flows.

« The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Village Council’s cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivables and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

The Village Council has the following financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Value added tax receivable Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Long term receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Non-current investments Financial asset measured at fair value
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The Village Council has the following financial liabilities:

Borrowings Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Payables from non-exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Unspent conditional grants Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Accrued leave pay Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Accrued bonus pay Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Payments received in advance Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Consumer deposits Financial liability measured at fair value

Unknown deposits Financial liability measured at fair value

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than ‘hold to collect’ or ‘hold to
collect and sell” are categorized at fair value through profit and loss. Furthermore, irrespective of business
model financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FVTPL.

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for a financial asset, the Village Council reclassifies the
investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available
becomes the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes available for a financial asset for which a measure was previously not
available and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the Village Council
reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Impairment and uncollectability of a financial asset
The Village Council assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate where necessary. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is
recognized in surplus or deficit.

Presentation and disclosures
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognized as

revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial
liability is recognized as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognized
as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
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A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the Village Council currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the
Village Council does not offset the transferred asset and the associated liability. As a prudent precaution on
accounts receivables, management shall make an allowance for doubtful accounts for all accounts one
hundred and twenty (120) days past due.

Disclosures

» Accounts receivables are reported in the financial statements net of customer advance payments.

« Accounts receivables shall be presented on the face of the statement of financial position net of allowance
for doubtful accounts.

« Derecognition of financial assets when the Village Council is no longer part to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument(s)

« Breaches of terms of agreement giving rise to accounts receivables.

« Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

« Allowance for doubtful accounts as an expense/income in the statement of surplus or deficit.

4, Expenses recognition

Under IPSAS, the accounting treatment of expenses and expense recognition is not specifically prescribed
by a standard. Rather it arises from the fundamental principle of accrual basis accounting. In accordance
with IPSAS 1, Presentation of financial statements, expenses are recognized when the transaction or event
that incurs the expenses takes place under the accrual basis of accounting. To provide useful information to
the users of the financial statements, expenses are analyzed by nature in the statement of surplus or deficit.

5. Other operating revenue

Other operating revenue arises from exchange transactions in the ordinary course of Tsandi Village
Council's activities. It comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Village Council's activities. The revenue is shown net of

tax, returns, rebates and discounts.
6. Unauthorized expenditure

Unauthorized expenditure means:
v’ Exceeding the budget for a specific vote or budget category;
v" Incurring expenditure that is not in line with the intended purpose of a specific vote or budget category.

7. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure refers to any expenditure that would have been avoided if reasonable care had been
exercised. All fruitless and unauthorized expenditures shall be recognized in the statement of surplus or
deficit for the year in which they are incurred. These expenditures shall be classified according to their
nature and if recovered, they shall subsequently be recognized as revenue in the statement of surplus or
deficit.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances, deposits held at call at financial institutions and short
term highly liquid investments with an original maturity exceeding three (3) months are excluded from
cash and cash equivalents and are reported under accounts receivables. Bank overdrafts which are short-
term borrowings are included in the short-term payables section of the financial statements. This ensures
that the financial statements accurately reflect the liquidity position of the Village Council.

9 Customer advance payments

Advance payments from customers are accounted for as a liability until an exchange of equal value is provided
by the Village Council in return. Such payments commonly appear as credits on the accounts receivables age
analysis at the end of every financial year.

Advance payments from customers are accounted for as a liability until an exchange of equal value is provided
by the Village Council in return. Such payments commonly appear as credits on the accounts receivables age
analysis at the end of every financial year.

The Village Council discloses all advance payments as a line item on the statement of financial position.
Advance payments revert back to revenue at the beginning of the following financial year as the Village
Council continues to render goods and services. Due to the timing of the reversion which occurs instantly on 30
June midnight cut-off, no adjustment for advance payments is made to the accounts receivables age analysis.

10. Funds and accounts

The Build Together fund balance is either;

a) Non-spendable (not in spendable form)

b) Restricted (restricted for particular purposes)
¢) Committed (committed to particular purposes)
d) Assigned (assigned for particular purposes)

11. Management of capital

The Village Council views its equity as the sole form of capital which serves the purpose of funding the
Council's core service capabilities and specialized long-life assets indefinitely. Unlike traditional measures
of capital efficiency that focus on generating returns on equity, the Village Council assesses its efficiency
based on service delivery and its ability to provide specialized services effectively. The primary goal is to
ensure the continuous provision of essential services to the community and maintain the functionality of
long-term assets rather than seeking financial returns on its equity.
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TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL

ANNEXURE B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND

30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

13. Imvestments

Items | 2022 2021
N§ N$
Opening balance of investment 10 385 443 5869102
Movement during the year -| 4516341
Total 10385443 | 10 385 443

The investment in Cenored of N$10 385 443 represents the substance of a contractual agreement which provides
for the transfer of Tsandi Village Council electrical infrastructure to NORED at cost in exchange for equity.

Movements in investments are triggered by the surrender of new infrastructure to NORED after the servicing of

new locations.

14. Inventories

Items 2022 2021
N$ NS$
Serviced erven/plots 11353 830 11 737 890
Stores inventory 422 233 376 530
Total 11 776 063 12 114 420

Tsandi Village Council accounts for serviced plots as inventory. As at the reporting date, 341 serviced plots
valued at N$ 11 353 830 were held in inventory. No new plots were serviced during the financial year. Further
disclosures are as per the reconciliation below. Stores inventory of N$ 422 233 (2022), and N$ 376 530 (2021)
represent items held for the repairs and maintenance of Tsandi Village Council items of property, plant, and
equipment, used for service delivery purposes.

Number Size of Gazetted Inventory
of plots plots in sqm price value
N§ | N$
Opening balance as at 01 July 2021 367 391 263 30.00 | 11 737 890
Serviced during the year - - -
Repossessions - - -
Donations received - - -
Sub-total - = -
Appropriations thorough disposals:
Tsandi Proper (9 313) 30.00 279
(17) 390)
Extension 3 (3 489) 30.00 (104
') 670)
Sub-total (12 802) (384
Other appropriations (26) 060)
Government functions - - -
Donations - - -
Allocated to PPE - - -
Sub-total - - -
Total appropriations for the year (12 802) 30.00 (334
Inventory of plots - 30 June 2022 (26) 830)
341 378 461 11 353 830
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ANNEXURE B

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND
30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

15. Accounts receivables

Item 2022 2021
N$ N§
Total accounts receivables 7 039 798 5005018
Allowance for doubtful accounts 4794 124) | (3448 723)
Total 2245674 1 556 295

Receivables of N$ 2 245 674 (2022) and N§$ 1 556 295 (2021) fall due within 14 days after billing. The Village
Council makes an allowance for receivables that are 120 days and over.

Receivables are made up of core municipal services rendered and outstanding for 120 days and over. As at the
reporting date, 783 debtors received municipal services from the Village Council without an exchange of equal
value in return. Municipal services comprises of water, refuse removal, sewerage services and other revenue
sources.

The Village Council holds accounts receivables with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows. Account
holders are not screened based on terms of ability to pay, and as a result, interest is levied on all outstanding
accounts resulting in the collection of principal and interest on outstanding amount.

Item 2022 2021

N$ N$
Current 797 467 623 561
31 - 60 Days 541 969 393 112
61 - 50 Days 489376 366 731
90 -120 Days 416 862 172 891
120 and over 4794 124 | 3 448 723
Total 7039798 | 5005018

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Item 2022 2021
N§$ N$
Opening balance of allowance 3448723 | 3330401
Allowance made during the year 1 345 400 118 322
Closing balance of allowance 4794 123 | 3448723

The village council uses the simplified approach to account for its accounts receivables. An allowance for
doubtful collection of accounts receivables outstanding for 120 days past due is made as at the reporting date.
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ANNEXURE B

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND

30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

15. Accounts receivables (Continued)

Build Together accounts receivables

Item

2022 2021

Opening balance
Movement during the year

Closing balance

N$ N$
471 187 | 81708
(28 558) | 389480

442 630 | 471187

The Village Council inherited the Build Together Fund from Omusati Regional Council in October 2017. Due to
the nature of the Build Together scheme (low cost housing for low income earners), no renegotiations are
undertaken to restructure the loans and their associated covenants. Due to non-renegotiation of the terms of the
covenants, unpaid portions of the principal and interest are allocated to accounts receivables. As a result of the
allocation of outstanding principal and interest on Build Together loans to accounts receivables, the Village
Council runs an altered accounting model from that under which normal commercial loans are assessed.

16. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash held with financial institutions, which includes call accounts, meets the
definition of cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amount of these cash and cash
equivalents is regarded as a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Additionally, the funds are accessible within less than seven days upon providing

notice to financial institutions.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
| Institution Account Type | Amount Amount
N$ N$
Standard bank Call account 47 557 21615
Standard bank Call account 516 510 7935 818
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 564 067 7 957 433

Restricted cash and cash equivalents amounted to N$ 564 067 (2022), and N$ 7 957 433 (2021) respectively.
Restrictions are constraints for specific purposes including Build Together scheme for ensuring housing to
low income earners and the operation of the Fund as a revolving fund benefiting future qualifying scheme
participants Build Together is funded by the Ministry of Urban and Rural Development in accordance with
the Trust Fund for Regional Development and Equity Provisions Act, 2000. There were no funds received
from the MURD during the financial year.
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ANNEXURE B

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND 30 JUNE
2022 (Continued)

16. Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
Institution Account type Amount Amount
N$ N$

First National Bank | Gold current account 10 400 12 629
Namibia

Standard bank Online account 194 825 23 825
Standard bank Current account 9568 761 505618
First National Bank | Call account 148 127 200 069
Namibia

Standard bank Operational account 380 323 100 637
Standard bank Pay-pulse 434 501
Total 10 302 871 843 278

As at the reporting date, the village council held spendable cash and cash equivalents of N§ 10 302 871 (2022),
and N$ 843 278 (2021) respectively. Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents is not committed to any specific
purposes and largely constitute the Village Council's liquid component of working capital.

17. Value added tax receivable

Item 2022 2021

NS$ N$
VAT Control Account 163 740 1572716
VAT Control Account 56 335 42 517
Value added tax receivable 220 075 1615233

The Village Council collects VAT and remits to the Receiver of Revenue and relies on the policies of the
Receiver of Revenue in administering collections and remittances. VAT receivable for the current financial year
amounted to N$220 075 while N$1 615 233 was receivable for the comparative period.

There were no penalties paid by the Village Council due to late submission of returns during the financial year.
There is no expectation of a value added disallowance on returns submitted.

18 Prepayments

Item 2022 2021
N$ N$
Prepayments 36 342 34512

Prepayments are largely from unexpired road licenses for motor vehicles and some items of plant, machinery
and equipment.

19 Pledges receivable
Item 2022 2021
N§ N$
Pledges receivable 230 000 230 000

Pledges arose from commitments by individual members of the community and companies to support the
Village Council in its service delivery objectives.
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ANNEXURE B

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND 30 JUNE
2022 (Continued)

The parties committed to cash pledges signed binding contracts with the Village Council. Due to signed
contracts, pledges satisfy the definition of an asset and it is probable that future economic benefits or service
potential will flow to the Village Council, and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

20.Accounts payables
Exchange transactions are an outflow of service potential with approximate equal value in return. Amounts

that are due during the coming twelve (12) months from the reporting date have been disclosed under
current liabilities.

Item 2022 2021
N$ N$
Exchange transactions 54 971 2 000
Non-exchange transactions 121 460 | 164 472

Accounts payables from non-exchange transactions represent obligations resulting in an outflow of service
potential or economic benefits without an exchange of equal value in return. Balances of commitments that
are due during the coming twelve (12) months from the reporting date have been disclosed under current
liabilities. The Regional Council obligation is levied in terms of The Local Authorities Act 1992 (Act No.
23 0of 1992) Section 77.

Item 2022 2021
N$ N§$

Opening balance - 5% levy 164 472 | 102 159

Regional Council-5% levy 125830 | 112313

Payments (168 842) | (50 000)

Total 121 460 | 164 472

21.Accrued expenses
Items 2022 2021
N§ N$

NAMPOST 169 -
NAMPOST 169 2293
Namwater 212 897 87 492
New Day Restaurant 1000 -
Southern Business School 6 600 3370
Telecom Namibia EFTS Telephone Payments 3241 395
Thunderstorms Investments cc 3 876 -
Woermann Brock 4996 -
Bester Automotive Centre - 11250
Jordan Oosthuysen Nangolo - 134 296
Omkumoh Consulting Engineers - 731 604
Schoemans Office System - 1122
Sinclair Services CC - 0.05
Tren Tyre - 8 758
Winplan CC - 324 795
Total 233401 | 1305375

Accrued expenses represent obligations to various suppliers for the provision of goods and services to the
Village Council. As at the reporting date N$ 233 401 represent an exchange of equal value yet to be offered in
return by the Village Council. There has been a significant reduction in obligations to third parties by 82%.
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TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND

30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

22. Employee provision

Item 2022 2021
N$ NS$
Leave provision - 2022 476 116 476 116
Leave provision - 2021 (411 402) (393 719)
| Total 64 714 82 397

The leave provision obligation for the year decreased by N$ 64 714 from N§ 476 116 to N§ 411 402. The
decrease in leave provision obligation is accounted for in other income.

23. Other creditors

Item 2022 2021
N§ N§
Retention on capital projects 9593 374915
Unearned revenue 26 706 90 705
Sundry creditors 219011 167 306
Consumers deposits - 18 600
Property/erven sales liability 863 719 | 1158443
Total 1119028 | 1809 969

Retention on capital projects

Retention fees amounted to N$ 9 593 (2022), and N§ 374 915 (2021).

Unearned revenue

Total

Ttems 2022 2021
NS$ N§
Build Together Fund unearned revenue - 90705
Unearned revenue 26 706 -
26706 | 90705

Unearned revenue comprises advance payments by customers on accounts where the Village Council had not

offered an exchange of equal value in return.
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ANNEXURE B

TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND
30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

23. Other creditors (Continued)

Sundry creditors

Item 2022 2021
N§ N§
Salary Advance/Refund 400 -
Unknown deposit 104 896 | 102 641
Accrued conveyancer property sales 86795 | 64665
Consumers deposit 26 920 -
Total 219011 | 167 306

Sundry creditors comprise largely of unknown deposits of N$ 104 896 for which the Village Council could not
trace the identity of the depositor, nor the account for which the payments were intended. Accrued
conveyancer fees on property sales of N$ 86 795 relate to amounts collected from purchasers, but not remitted
to the conveyancer as at the reporting date. Consumer deposits of N$ 26 920 represent collections from
account holders kept as security deposits for a likelihood of default on the municipal services account.

Property/erven sales liability

Item 2022 2021
N§ NS$
Opening balance 1158 443 -
Movements (294 725) 1158 443
Total 863 719 1158 443

Property sales liabilities amounted to N$ 863 719 (2022) and N$1 158 443 (2021). Property sales liabilities
arise from payments from purchasers not representing the full purchase price of a respective property (serviced
erven). All property sales liabilities are extinguished at full payment of the purchase price after which a
transfer to revenue is affected.

24. Service charges

Service charges are major revenue sources comprising of water supply, sewerage, electricity, and refuse
removal. The provision of these services is governed by the Local Authorities Act of 1992 (Act No.23 of
1992), which outlines the powers and functions of local municipalities in offering services to residents.

Item 2022 2021
N$ N$
Sewerage | 504981 | 422810
Water sales [ 3078979 3275982
Refuse removal 557 709 513024
Garden refuse [ 87 819 73 589
Pre-paid cards 4925 5824
Pre-paid water _ 11934 9925
Total | 4246 346 4 301 153

Revenue from charges for services amounted to N$ 4 246 346 and N$ 4 301 153 respectively. During the
financial year, the Village Council sold 128 260 890 million of water to residential, business institutions and
industries within Tsandi urban. A combined number of 781 businesses and households were billed during the
year.
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TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND
30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

24. Service charges

The next best significant revenue contribution was for refuse removal with an amount of N§ 557 709 (2022) and
N$ 513 024 (2021) from both business and household, and garden refuse of N$ 87 819) (2022) and N§ 73 589
(2021). A total of 239 bins are collected on a monthly basis.

25. Property sales
Ttem 2022 2021
| N§ N§
Residential property sales 575 430 1277050
Total 575 430 1277 050

During the financial year, a disposal of 26 residential plots measuring a total of 12 802 square meters resulted
in the recognition of revenue of N$ 575 430 with the purchasers having met the revenue recognition criteria.
Tsandi Village Council derecognizes all properties upon the purchaser meeting the revenue recognition
criteria, where briefly stated encompasses;

a) Council approval to purchase;
b) Ministerial approval; and
¢) Full payment of the purchase price for the respective plot.

26. Rental income

The Village Council generates rental revenue from some of its items of property, plant, and equipment that are
either purchased or constructed for rental purposes. These assets include land, machinery, and equipment.

Item 2022 2021
N§ N$
Equipment hiring 176 176 104 783
Portable toilets 900 5400
Hiring of portable toilets 14 250 18 860
Open market rental 35005 29 093
Hiring of tent, tables and chairs - 300
Total 226332 | 158436

Rental of Village Council items of property, plant and equipment items amounted to N§ 226 332 (2022), and
N$ 158 436 (2021) respectively. Main sources of rental revenue for the year are traceable to equipment hiring of

N$ 176 176, and open market rental N§$ 35 005.

27. Surcharge revenue

Item 2022 2021
N$ N§
Surcharge revenue - NORED 272222 254214

Surcharge income is derived from electricity sales by NORED within Tsandi Village Council area. In this
arrangement, the Village Council earns 0.06 cents per unit of electricity sold. During the financial year,
4 537 034 units were sold resulting in a royalty fee of N$ 272 222 being earned, while 4 236 900 units were sold
for the prior year for a royalty of N§ 254 214.
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ANNEXURE B
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND 30 JUNE
2022 (Continued)

28. Fitness certificates

Ttem 2022 2021
N$ N$
Fitness certificate revenue 55 100 40 520

The Village Council collects revenue from inspection of business premises as a way of ensuring that they meet a
predetermined level of operational acceptance. Revenue from fitness certificate for the two years amounted to
N$ 55 100 and N$ 40 520 respectively.

29. Permission to occupy

Item 2022 2021
N$ N$
Permission to occupy 594 965 471 331

Permission to occupy comprises revenue collected/collectable on a permission to lease before purchase basis.
As at the reporting date, amounts of N$ 594 965 (2022), and N$ 471 331 (2021) were charged respectively. As
at the reporting date, 432 contracts were signed with individual residents of the community.

30. Other revenue

Other revenue comprise gross inflow of service potential from different sources during the year. Some of
the sources of income are non-recurrent while other exhibit a recurrent behavior over time.

Item 2022 2021
N$ N$
Sale of diaries 100 600
Marketing and promotions 14 598 14 050
Other income 1020 2380
Building sand 222 703 263 296
Building plan 35825 24 791
Tender fees 17 400 27 500
Water connection 40 348 28 447
Photocopy and fax sales 911 805
Street cleaning 50482 41790
Kilometer (Km) 6 000 6 450
Bill boards advertisement 3600 2 886
Sewer connections 900 1325
Commission/admin fees received 2 499 4950
Income - Sales from annual Trade Fair 200 5050
Fire brigade 35802 24 166
Road infrastructure 28714 18 620
Admin fees (Property sales) 13 000 30 500
Valuation certification fee 30 250
Income - Discount received 4 494 -
Income - Revenue from leave days 64 714 -
Total 543 340 497 856
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND
30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

30. Other revenue (Continued)

Other revenue for the year amounted to N$ 543 340 while N$ 497 856 was recorded for the prior year. Other
revenue was largely driven by sand sales of N$ 222 703 making 42% of other revenue. During the2022 financial
year 198 truckloads of 1 900 cubic meters of sand were sold.

31. Interest income

Item 2022 2021
N$ NS$
Interest - overdue account 1275 441 946 186
Interest - investment account 232 955 153 890
Interest - call account 1105 1109
Interest - bank account 10 899 9377
Total 1520 400 1110 564

The Village Council earns interest from outstanding accounts receivables and on bank balances with financial
institutions. During the 2022 financial year, interest levies amounted to N$ 1 520 400, while 1 110 564 was
recorded for the prior year. Interest on account receivable of N§ 1 275 441 and N§ 946 186 (2021) comprise the
largest component at 84% and 85% of the baseline respectively. The second largest contributor of interest
earnings amounting to N$ 232 955 and 153 890 (2021) is the call account held with Standard Bank Namibia.

32. Property rates and taxes

In terms of Section 73 of the Local Authorities Act, 1992 (Act No.23 of 1992), The Village Council levies

property rates, and taxes on ratable properties within its proclaimed area. The levy is based on the property's

valuation, size, and improvements made.

Item 2022 2021
N$ N§

2516 608 | 2246256

Property rates and taxes

Rates assessed on property and improvements during the financial year amounted to N§ 2 516 608 and
N§ 2 246 256 (2021). The increase in assessment rates by 12% is attributable to sixty-nine (69) residential
properties, ten (10) business properties, and one (1) institutional added to private ownership and therefore
qualifying for assessment. During the financial year, the Village Council levied rates and taxes on three hundred
and thirty nine (339) households.

33. Government and other departmental transfer

Items 2022 2021
N$ N$
Subsidies - Government - MURD 5850480 5 801 889
Subsidies - Road Fund Administration (RFA) 729 686 821 250
Services in-kind 130 000 130 000
Total 6710 166 6 753 139

Non-exchange revenue of N$ 6 710 166 (2022), and N$ 6 753 139 (2021) was derived from the usual traditional
sources namely the Ministry of Urban Rural Development (MURD) N$ 5 850 480, Road Fund Administration
N$ 729 686. Transfers from MURD comprise capital transfers of N$ 2 350 478, and operational subsidy of
N$ 3 500 000. The audit grant of N$ 130 000 is for audit services in-kind provided by the Office of the Auditor-
General. This grant is conditioned on training and skills development for accounting and finance staff with
emphasis on financial reporting and internal audit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARs ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND

30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

34. General and administration expenses

General and administration expenses are daily appropriations representing an outflow of service potential that is
unrelated to a specific function or department within the Village Council.

Item 2022 2021
N§ N§$
Water consumption - 23 961
Cleaning of town / dumping site - 20 627
Consultancy fee - 82 109
Small tools and equipment - 18 770
Interim valuation and gazetting 10 649 86 000
Service in kind 130 000 130 000
Advertisement and Marketing 180 756 41533
Bank charges 118 842 108 807
Cellphone / airtime allowance 14 400 22 800
Cleaning materials 54 689 38375
Computer software license fees 37 500 30 000
Contribution to associations 18 000 20 700
Conveyors fees - expense account 16 204 -
Electricity consumption 274 495 250 051
Entertainment allowance (councilor) 16 029 20 254
Financial study assistance 6 600 13 864
Fuel and oil 263 772 177 459
GP license and services 165 996 96618
Infectious disease control 2591 8202
Insurance and excess 172 806 156 674
Internet, telephone and email 57 268 48 322
Kilometer claim 47 026 36 641
Office equipment rental - Photocopier machine rental 10 538 10 569
Postage and courier 59975 54 364
Printing, photocopying and stationery 60 555 95328
Protective clothing 6678 61482
Refuse removal services 109 361 148 800
Security services and alarm system 171 900 178 200
Speed point services 23 602 20 544
Strategic plan development 10 745 51587
Student attachment allowance 22 631 32736
Training and consultancy 126 385 153 521
Travel and subsistence 369 943 153 034
Nalasra sports wear 11 250 20 124
Vehicle and machinery license fees 50114 47 165
Prepaid water meters 5610 4200
Year-end function (pensioners) 9341 4 687
Total 2 636 248 2 468 111

General and administrative expenses of N$ 2 636 248 (2022), and N$ 2 468 111 (2021) are primarily related to
operational appropriations. Notable components of these expenses for the financial year ended 30 June 2022
include: advertising and marketing of N$ 180 756, electricity consumption N§ 274 495, fuel and oil
N$ 263 772, insurance and excess N$ 172 806, security and alarm systems N$ 171 900, and travel and
subsistence N$ 369 943. These expenses had a significant impact on the Village Council's overall operational
expenditure for the year.
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35. Employee costs

Tsandi Village Council runs a defined contribution scheme for its employees. Employee contributions to
pension are remitted to RFLAUN and Tsandi Village Council does not make good any shortfall arising on
the pension scheme. Employee costs include short-term and long-term benefits resulting from rendering of
services. Employee benefits were provided only to Tsandi Village Council employees and did not extend to
dependents or other individuals through any structured insurance arrangement or schemes.

Item 2022 2021
N§ N$
Salaries and wages 1786238 1663 070
Medical aid contributions 456 335 407 286
Housing allowance 408 431 391235
Pension Fund contributions 387 677 369 020
Service bonus (allowance) 149 681 133 281
Transport Allowance 129 684 122 592
Leave gratuity 86 000 108 113
Car allowance 89316 89316
Overtime 18 609 51321
Standby allowance 23 786 22779
Social security contributions 13 140 12 253
Employee compensation fund 4363 2992
Total 3 553 261 3373259

Employee cost of N$ 3 553 261 (2022), and N$ 3 373 259 (2021) make-up long term and short term employee
benefits arising from rendering of services. Long term employee benefits for the year ended 30 June 2022
comprises of salaries and wages of N§ 1 786 238 and contributions to pension fund of N$ 387 677 which is due

after retirement.

Remuneration of key management personnel

HR
Item CEO Officer Accountant Artisan LM Officer
N§ NS$ N$ N$ N$
Basic salary 255622 151 470 142 334 151 470 151 470
Housing allowance 102 249 30294 28 467 | 30294 30294
Social Security Commission 972 972 | 972 | 972 972
Pension fund contributions | 55470 32 869 30 886 32 869 32 869
Medical Aid 31068 24 633 29 448 27 634 59921
Car allowance/transport 89316 7704 7704 7704 7704
Bonus 21302 12 622 12 021 12 622 | 12 622
Total 555 998 260 564 251 833 263 565 \ 295 852

Remuneration is any consideration or benefit derived directly or indirectly from Tsandi Village Council for
services provided in their capacity as members of the governing body or as employees of the Village
Council. Remuneration of key management personnel responsible for the strategic direction of Tsandi
Village Council has been set out above in line with the provisions of IPSAS 20, Related Parties paragraph
21. No consideration for services was paid to members of the governing body in lieu of services or goods
rendered during the financial year. There were no loans advanced to management during the financial year

and other prior years.
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35. Employee costs (Continued)

Councilors’ remuneration

Item 2022 2021
N$ N$
Salaries and allowances 191 056 | 191 056

Remuneration paid to five (5) members of the governing board amounted to N$ 191 056 as budgeted. There

were no changes to board composition during the financial year.

36. Repairs and maintenance

Item 2022 2021
N$ N$
Computers - 455
Sewer tools and pup start - 12 893
Plant, machinery and equipment 130 829 257273
Buildings maintenance 53 985 40 509
Sewer tools and reticulation (pump) 36 143 37188
Water reticulation maintenance 59 677 29 787
Office equipment 21797 6 763
Office furniture, fixture, and fittings 2727 6 658
Fire extinguisher and tools 25222 4269
Rehabilitation of old dumping site 32333 -
Total 362 713 395 796

Expenditure appropriations for the current year amounted to N$ 362 713 (2022) and N§ 395 795 (2021) for the
comparative year. Maintenance of plant, machinery and equipment of N$ 130 829, comprise the largest

appropriations.

37. Bulk water

Item 2022 2021
N§ N§
Bulk water purchase | 2 089 214 | 2 106 092

55




ANNEXURE B
TSANDI VILLAGE COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 AND
30 JUNE 2022 (Continued)

38. Funds and accounts : Build Together

Build Together Fund is a housing project for low-income earners that is funded by the Ministry of Urban and
Rural Development in line with the Trust Fund for Regional Development and Equity Provisions Act, 2000.
Tsandi Village Council administers the scheme in line with the provisions of the National Housing
Development Act, 28 of 2000.

Item 2022 2021
N§ N$
Funds and accounts - BTP - Housing Fund 337800 | 337800
Movements (58515) -
Total 279285 | 337 800
39. Prior period errors
Item 2022
N§

Accounts receivables on property sales (1419957)
Adjustment to property, plant and equipment items (409 645)
Other adjustments (164 846)
Total adjustments (1 994 548)

40. Reconciliation of Net cash flows from operating activities to surplus/deficit

Item 2022
N§

Surplus/Deficit 4336 402
Adjustments for non-cash movements

Depreciation 2559514
Bonus contribution 61777
Movement in allowance for doubtful accounts 1345 400
Adjustments for working capital changes

Inventories 338357
Accounts receivables (689 380)
Build together receivables 28 557
Adjustment to accounts receivables (1465 715)
VAT Receivable 1395158
Prepayments (1 830)
Accounts payables exchange transactions 52971
Accounts payables non-exchange transactions (43 012)
Accrued expenses (1071975)
Employee provisions (67 100)
Other creditors (396 217)
Total movements 2 046 505
Cash generated from operations 6 382 907
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41. Adjustments to surplus or deficit

Item 2021
N§
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts (1076 692)
Property sales liabilities (814 844)
Accounts receivables on property sales (1419957)
Property, plant and equipment (103 689)
Other adjustments (169 500)
Total adjustments (3 584 681)

42. Reconciliation of Net cash flows from operating activities to surplus / deficit

Item 2021
N§

Surplus or deficit for the year 3353525
Adjustments:

Depreciation 2743 302
Allowance for doubtful accounts 118322
Working capital changes

Accounts receivables 131 181
Value added tax receivable 2725799
Inventories (1 299 256)
Prepayments (1314)
Account payables: Exchange transactions (20 000)
Account payables: non-exchange transactions 44 313
Accrued expenses 1173762
Employee provisions 72 783
Other creditors 1 049 039
Total adjustments 6 737 931
Net cash generated from operations 10 091 456
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